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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS 

TYLER DIVISION 
 
PUBLISHING TECHNOLOGIES LLC §    
      §   
 Plaintiff,    §  Case No: 

      §   
vs.      §        
      §   
FMR LLC d/b/a FIDELITY INVESTMENTS §  
      §  JURY TRIAL DEMANDED 
 Defendant.    § 
____________________________________ §  
 
 

COMPLAINT FOR PATENT INFRINGEMENT 
 
 Plaintiff Publishing Technologies, LLC (“Plaintiff” or “PT”), by and through its 

attorneys, files this Complaint against FMR LLC d/b/a Fidelity Investments (“Defendant” or 

“FMR”) for infringement of United States Patent Nos. 7,908,342 (“the ‘342 Patent”). 

PARTIES AND JURISDICTION 

 1. This is an action for patent infringement under Title 35 of the United States Code. 

Plaintiff is seeking injunctive relief as well as damages. 

 2.  Jurisdiction is proper in this Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331 (Federal 

Question) and 1338(a) (Patents) because this is a civil action for patent infringement arising 

under the United States patent statutes.  

 3. Plaintiff is a Texas limited liability company with its office located at 825 Watters 

Creek Blvd., Bldg. M, Suite 250, Allen, TX 75013. 

 4. Upon information and belief, Defendant is a Delaware limited liability company 

with a principal office at 245 Summer Street, Boston, Massachusetts 02210.  Defendant may be 

served with process via its registered agent The Corporation Trust Company, Corporation Trust 
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Center, 1209 Orange Street, Wilmington, Delaware 19801.  This Court has personal jurisdiction 

over Defendant because Defendant has committed, and continues to commit, acts of 

infringement in this District, has conducted business in this District, and/or has engaged in 

continuous and systematic activities in this District. 

 5. Upon information and belief, Defendant’s instrumentalities that are alleged herein 

to infringe were and continue to be used, imported, offered for sale, and/or sold in this District.  

VENUE 

 6. On information and belief, venue is proper in this District pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 

§§ 1391(c) and 1400(b).  Defendant is deemed to reside in this district under § 1391(c) because 

Defendant is not a domestic corporation and is subject to personal jurisdiction in this District.  

Further, or in the alternative, under § 1400(b), acts of infringement are occurring in this District 

and Defendant has a regular and established place of business in this District.  For example, on 

information and belief, Defendant has a regular and established place of business at 5905 Legacy 

Dr., Suite A100, Plano, TX 75024.  On information and belief, Defendant has other regular and 

established places of business in this District. 

COUNT I 

(INFRINGEMENT OF UNITED STATES PATENT NO. 7,908,342) 
 
 7. Plaintiff incorporates paragraphs 1 through 6 herein by reference.  

 8. This cause of action arises under the patent laws of the United States and, in 

particular, under 35 U.S.C. §§ 271, et seq.  

 9. Plaintiff is the owner by assignment of the ‘342 Patent with sole rights to enforce 

the ‘342 Patent and sue infringers.  

 10. A copy of the ‘342 Patent, titled “Method, apparatus and system for management 
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of information content for enhanced accessibility over wireless communication networks,” is 

attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

 11. The ‘342 Patent is valid, enforceable, and was duly issued in full compliance with 

Title 35 of the United States Code. 

 12. Upon information and belief, Defendant has infringed and continues to infringe 

one or more claims, including at least Claim 17, of the ‘342 Patent by making, using, importing, 

selling, and/or offering for sale an online trading platform and system, which is covered by one 

or more claims of the ‘342 Patent.  Defendant has infringed and continues to infringe the ‘342 

Patent directly in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271. 

 13. Regarding Claim 17, Defendant provides an apparatus for use in managing 

information content in a network-based communication system.  For example, Defendant 

provides an online trading platform (“Product”) that is implemented using at least one server 

used in managing information content. The server is connected to the Internet, through which it 

communicates with computing clients such as customers’ computers and mobile 

smartphone/tablet devices.  Certain aspects of the foregoing are illustrated in the screenshots 

below. 
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 14. The Product’s servers have processing elements comprising a processor coupled 

to a memory. The Product’s servers, for example, execute instructions in response to user 

requests for content, order placement and dashboard configuration using a processor.  Further, 

the Product’s servers comprise a volatile memory (such as RAM) used for executing the 

instructions using the processor.  Further, the Product’s servers also comprise a non-volatile 
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memory that stores user preferences, order history, dashboard and portfolio information.   

Certain aspects of the foregoing are illustrated in the screenshots below. 
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 15. The processors provide at least a portion of a content management website 

identified by a first uniform resource locator that can be accessed over the Internet using a web 

browser. For example, the Product’s content management website is accessible to a user and is 

identified by the URL https://www.fidelity.com/.  The Product allows users to designate one or 

more stock symbols using the "full" website (the claimed "content management website") and 

add the stock symbols to one or more “watch lists.”  Once a stock symbol has been added to a 

watch list, a user clicks on the stock symbol via a hyperlink and accesses information associated 

with that stock symbol from external data sources, including but not limited to news, quotes and 

analysis charts associated with the stock symbol.  Only stock symbols designated by the user are 

added and accessible through such watch lists.  Therefore, by designating one or more stock 
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symbols to be added into watch lists on the Product's content management website, a user 

designates the external data sources that provide information including but not limited to news, 

quotes and analysis charts associated with that stock symbol. Certain aspects of the foregoing are 

illustrated in the screen shots below. 
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 16. The processor also generates a mobile website identified by a second uniform 
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resource locator different than the first uniform resource locator, the mobile web site being 

accessible independently of the content management web site via one or more mobile devices. 

For example, the Product’s mobile trading platform (the claimed "mobile web site”) is accessible 

via the Fidelity Investments App.  This is distinct and easily distinguished from the "full" 

website (the claimed "content management website") accessible via the URL 

https://www.fidelity.com/.  Users access the mobile web trading platform using a mobile browser 

application installed on their mobile devices. The Product’s mobile app trading platform is thus 

accessible independently of the “full” website.  Further, the watch lists, stock symbols designated 

by the user to be added in the watch lists, and the information including but not limited to news, 

quotes and analysis charts associated with the designated stock symbols are also made accessible 

to the user via the mobile web trading platform (the claimed "mobile web site").  Further, the 

mobile web trading platform (the claimed "mobile web site") receives the information including, 

but not limited to, news, quotes and analysis charts associated with the designated stock symbols 

directly from the external data sources that provide the aforementioned information.  These 

external data sources include at least one or more news publishers (for news and articles), stock 

exchange servers (for price quotes) and Defendant and/or third party servers that process and 

store historical prices and analyst research (for charts), each of which are external to the "full" 

website and external to the mobile web trading platform.  Certain aspects of the foregoing are 

illustrated in the screenshots below. 
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 17. Additionally, to the extent users access the trading platform not through the 

mobile web trading platform (using a mobile web browser installed on their mobile device), but 

instead through one of a plurality of mobile apps offered by Defendant, these mobile apps also 

practice the claim limitation under doctrine of equivalents.  The mobile apps are applications that 

can be installed on a user’s Android/iOS mobile device much like a mobile browser – and 

provide an interface for the user to view the same stock symbols and the associated information 

from external data sources as described above.  Upon information and belief, the interface is 

generated at least in part using information received from the same URLs as the mobile web 
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trading platform.  Defendant offers at least the following such mobile apps each for Android and 

iOS mobile devices: 

 - Fidelity Investments for iOS iPhone, iPad, Apple Watch 

 (https://itunes.apple.com/us/app/fidelity-investments/id348177453?mt=8?mt=8) 

- Fidelity Investments for Amazon for Android, Kindle 

(https://www.amazon.com/Fidelity-

Investments/dp/B007OWWNNO/ref=sr_1_1?ie=UTF8&qid=1336141344&sr=8-1) 

- Fidelity Investments for Android Devices 

(https://play.google.com/store/apps/details?id=com.fidelity.android) 

- Fidelity Investments for Windows Phone 8 

(https://www.microsoft.com/en-us/windows/windows-10-mobile-upgrade) 

The following screenshots from the Fidelity Investments for iOS and Windows 8 (on tablet) as 

an exemplary mobile app show the interface provided to the user for viewing stock symbols 

designated in one or more watch lists and the associated information such as news, quotes and 

charts received directly from external data sources. 
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 18. Defendant’s actions complained of herein will continue unless Defendant is 

enjoined by this court. 

 24. Defendant’s actions complained of herein are causing irreparable harm and 

monetary damage to Plaintiff and will continue to do so unless and until Defendants are enjoined 

and restrained by this Court. 

 25. Plaintiff is in compliance with 35 U.S.C. § 287. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

 WHEREFORE, Plaintiff asks the Court to: 

 (a) Enter judgment for Plaintiff on this Complaint on all causes of action asserted 

herein;  

 (b) Award Plaintiff past and future damages, costs, and expenses resulting from 

Defendant’s infringement in accordance with 35 U.S.C. § 284; 

 (c) Award Plaintiff pre-judgment and post-judgment interest and costs; and 
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 (d) Award Plaintiff such further relief to which the Court finds Plaintiff entitled under 

law or equity. 
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Dated: October 25, 2017   Respectfully submitted, 

 
/s/ Jay Johnson      
JAY JOHNSON 
State Bar No. 24067322 
D. BRADLEY KIZZIA 
State Bar No. 11547550 
KIZZIA JOHNSON, PLLC 
1910 Pacific Ave., Suite 13000 
Dallas, Texas 75201 
(214) 451-0164 
Fax: (214) 451-0165 
jay@kjpllc.com  
bkizzia@kjpllc.com 
 
ATTORNEYS FOR PLAINTIFF 
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EXHIBIT A 
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